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Hi Andrew,
 
Please see responses to be questions below.
 
Kind regards,
 
Michelle Niles
Senior Planner
Regional Assessments
320 Pitt Street | GPO Box 39, SYDNEY  NSW  2001
T 02 9274 6272 |E michelle.niles@planning.nsw.gov.au
 


 


From: Michelle Niles 
Sent: Wednesday, 20 February 2019 3:29 PM
To: Michelle Niles <Michelle.Niles@planning.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Dan Keary <dan@keylan.com.au>; brent@keylan.com.au
Subject: RE: Shell Cove Boat Harbour
 
Hi Andrew,
 
Apologies for the delay responding. Please see responses to the further questions:
 
1. Please confirm whether the additional 6,000 sqm of land in Precinct E is contained wholly


within the approved land description. If not, please clarify the Department’s position that the
inclusion of this land is within the scope of Section 75W. The Commission also notes the land
description in the modifying instrument may also need to be amended to include reference to
this additional land.


 
Response: The additional land is currently legally identified as Lot 5074 DP 1249071. The
draft modification instrument has been amended to include this updated lot refence
(attached).
 
The Department considers that the additional land can be incorporated into the Concept
Plan site area under the scope of s75W noting that the additional land will be used for
residential purposes, similar to that approved by the Concept Plan, and it directly adjoins
the Concept Plan area.   


 
2. Please confirm whether the traffic generation rates included an assessment of all future uses
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Modification of Concept Approval





Section 75W of the Environmental Planning & Assessment Act 1979











As delegate of the Minister for Planning, the Independent Planning Commission modifies the Concept Plan approval referred to in Schedule 1, subject to the modified terms of approval outlined in Schedule 2.  














Member of the Commission   Member of the Commission   Member of the Commission





Sydney 			           2018








SCHEDULE 1





Concept Plan Approval:		MP 07_0027 granted by the Deputy Director-General Development Assessment & System Performance on 15 February 2011.





Proponent:		Australand Corporation (NSW) Pty Ltd.





For the following:	Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct, including residential, commercial, community, retail, hotel, business park, dry boat storage facility, open space and wetlands at Lot 8032 DP 1072187, Lot 8100 DP 1082981, Lot 206 DP 857030, Lot 9004 DP 1117743 and Lot 30 DP 229374 Boollwarroo Parade, Shell Cove





Modification:		MP 07_0027 MOD 1 the modification includes:


· increasing the maximum number of dwellings to 1566;


· revising housing densities and typologies across the site;


· removing the maximum residential gross floor area limit of 150,000m2;


· reconfiguring the town centre layout;


· increasing the maximum building heights in certain areas;


· provision of a maximum building height in metres;


· adding ‘serviced apartments’ and ‘residential accommodation’ as permissible uses within the hotel building;


· the addition of 6000m2 of land to the site area;


· changes to the road pattern and layout; 


· provision of acoustic walls in place of landscape moulds surrounding the marina commercial land use; and


· amendments to the Statement of Commitments.   






SCHEDULE 2





The consent is modified as follows:





(a) [bookmark: _GoBack]Land – the land to which the Concept Approval applies to is modified as follows:





			Land


			Lot 8032 DP 1072187, Lot 8100 DP 1082981, Lot 206 DP 857030, Lot 9004 DP 1117743, and Lot 30 DP 229374 and Lot 5074 DP 1249071 Boollwarroo Parade, Shell Cove











(b) Definitions – the following definitions are amended as follows:





			Concept Plan


			Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct Concept Plan comprising residential, commercial, community, retail, hotel, business park, dry boat storage facility, open space and wetlands as described in Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct Concept Plan Application and Environmental Assessment, 26 February 2010 prepared by LFA (Pacific) Pty Ltd and as amended by the Section 75W Modification, dated 8 August 2017, prepared by Ethos Urban, and Response to Submissions, prepared by Ethos Urban, dated 7 February 2018, 31 May 2018 and 31 July 2018.








			Tourist and Visitor Accommodation 


			A building or place that provides temporary or short-term accommodation on a commercial basis, and includes any of the following:


a) backpackers’ accommodation,


b) bed and breakfast accommodation,


c) farm stay accommodation,


d) hotel or motel accommodation,


e) serviced apartments,


but does not include:


f) camping grounds, or


g) caravan parks, or


h) eco-tourist facilities.











(c) Schedule 2 Part A – Terms of Approval, Condition 1 is amended by the insertion of the bold and underlined words / numbers and deletion of the struckout words/numbers as follows:





1. Approval for the Boat Harbour Precinct





Except as modified by this approval, Concept Plan approval is granted only to the carrying out of development within the Concept Plan area as listed below and in more detail in Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct Concept Plan Application and Environmental Assessment, 26 February 2010, as amended by the Preferred Project Report:


(a) Up to 1,238 1,566 dwellings with a total gross floor area of approximately 150,000m2 comprising single dwellings, medium density and apartments; 


(b) a business park with a maximum gross floor area of 30,000m2;


(c) [bookmark: _Hlk529206221]retail/commercial/hotel/community development with a maximum gross floor area of 22,000m2 14,830m2;


(d) a mixed-use landmark (hotel) building of up to 11 storeys;


(e) public open space and wetlands; and


(f) associated drainage, stormwater infrastructure and roads.           





(d) Schedule 2 Part A – Terms of Approval, Condition 2 is amended by the insertion of the bold and underlined words / numbers and deletion of the struckout words/numbers as follows:





2. Approved Plans and Documentation





The project shall be generally in accordance with the following plans and documentation: 





(a) Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct Concept Plan Application and Environmental Assessment, dated 26 February 2010, prepared by LFA (Pacific) Pty Ltd, including Volumes 1 and 2 and Appendices A to P;


(b) Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct Preferred Project Report, dated November 2010 prepared by LFA (Pacific) Pty Ltd, including Appendices 1 and 2; and 


(c) Statement of Commitments (Schedule 4), as amended by the updated Statement of Commitments provided in Appendix C of the Section 75W Modification, dated 8 August 2017, prepared by Ethos Urban; and


(d) Section 75W Modification, dated 8 August 2017, prepared by Ethos Urban, and Response to Submissions, prepared by Ethos Urban, dated 7 February 2018, 31 May 2018 and 31 July 2018. 


except as otherwise provided by the terms of this approval.





(e) Schedule 2 Part A – Terms of Approval is amended by the insertion of the following new Term of Approval 6:





[bookmark: _Hlk528857737]6.	Maximum number of dwellings





[bookmark: _Hlk528857808]The maximum number of dwellings permitted on the site is limited to 1420 dwellings, unless the developer submits, written confirmation from Sydney Water that adequate water and wastewater servicing is available to accommodate a maximum of 1566 dwellings, to the satisfaction of the Secretary.  





(f) Schedule 2 Part A – Terms of Approval is amended by the insertion of the following new Term of Approval 7:





7.	Parking 





The parking requirements set out in the approved plans and documentation submitted as part of MOD 1 are not approved as part of the Concept Plan.  Parking requirements shall be assessed and determined by Council as part of any future development applications and as a part of the precinct Urban Design Guidelines, where relevant. 





(g) Schedule 2 Part A – Terms of Approval is amended by the insertion of the following new Term of Approval 8:





8. 	Urban Design Guidelines 





[bookmark: _Hlk528857826]The Urban Design Guidelines submitted as part of MOD 1 are not approved as part of the Concept Plan.  The Urban Design Guidelines are to be assessed and determined by Council, as set out in Part D of this approval.





(h) Schedule 2 Part A – Terms of Approval is amended by the insertion of the following new Term of Approval 9:





9. 	Indicative detail design 





[bookmark: _Hlk528857839]The indicative designs / layouts for open space, foreshore areas, works within the water, the boat maintenance/storage facility and buildings as shown in the approved plans and documentation submitted with MOD 1 are not approved as part of the Concept Approval. These matters shall be assessed and determined by Council as part of any future development applications and as part of precinct Urban Design Guidelines, where relevant.   








(i) Schedule 2 Part B – Modifications to the Concept Plan is amended by the insertion of the bold and underlined words / numbers and deletion of the struckout words/numbers as follows:





Part B – Modifications to the Concept Plan





The following There are no modifications are required to the Concept Plan outlined in the Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct Preferred Project Report and amended by the Section 75W Modification to MP 07_0027 MOD 1:





1. [bookmark: _Hlk528857860][bookmark: _Hlk529206257]a landscape buffer, with a minimum width of 5m, is to be provided between the marina / commercial land use and the residential properties to the south. The landscape buffer is to be:





(a) provided on land associated with the marina / commercial land use and be located south of the acoustic wall;


(b) must include appropriate planting to screen the acoustic wall from the residential properties to the south; and


(c) must have the same ground level as the residential properties to the south. 





2. [bookmark: _Hlk528251268]to ensure an appropriate interface with adjoining dwellings, all future buildings at the northern edge of the Concept Plan site are to present a height of no greater than two storeys and a maximum of 9m to the northern boundary. This requirement does not apply to buildings that adjoin Ron Costello Oval or Keith Hockey Oval.





    


(j) Schedule 3 Part D – Further Environmental Assessment Requirements, Condition 1 is amended by the insertion of the bold and underlined words / numbers and deletion of the struckout words/numbers as follows:





1.	Urban Design





The proponent must submit detailed urban design guidelines for the project prepared by a suitably qualified architect or urban designer, for each stage. The guidelines must establish design controls which achieve the following where relevant to the particular stage:





· architectural diversity within all stages which complements the site’s coastal context; and


· a variety of detailed designs which avoid monotones and repetition; 


· design of the hotel mixed use landmark (hotel) building and public square in the commercial precinct which define street and water edges, and create visual interest; 


· [bookmark: _Hlk528857902]a hotel mixed use landmark (hotel) building with a slender tower angled to the east to maximise views to the coast to the north and south, reduce impacts on the boat harbour, and relate well to the area’s existing urban form and which may comprise a 3-4 storey high podium;


· demonstration of a mix of dwelling types and sizes for each residential precinct, including consideration of affordable and adaptable housing;


· building separation, setbacks, solar access, visual and acoustic privacy, view corridors and an adequate level of environmental amenity; 


· compliance with Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design (CPTED) principles;


· the location and distribution of public car parks;


· where applicable, that State Environmental Planning Policy No. 65 – Design Quality of Residential Flat Development principles and the Residential Flat Design Code Guidelines can been achieved;


· appropriate density, bulk, scale, textures and colours in relation to surrounding development, topography and streetscape;


· consistency with the New South Wales Coastal Policy 1997 and Coastal Design Guidelines New South Wales in terms of visual impact, bulk, scale and amenity; 


· layout and design which satisfies the design considerations in Healthy by Design: A Planners Guide to Environment’s for Active Living, National Heart Foundation of Australia;


· clear addresses for buildings fronting public walkways along the harbour and direct access from walkways where possible;


· an indicative staging plan identifying the likely timing and sequence for each stage; 


· buildings which address main avenues or boulevards and serviced by rear laneways/access ways to improve legibility and prevent gated communities; and


· design and layout to minimise noise impacts to sensitive residential areas near the quarry boundary.; and


· [bookmark: _Hlk528251330]demonstrate adequate on-site parking is provided for the mixed-use landmark (hotel) building, restaurant and function centre development to not adversely impact on-street parking in the town centre and surrounding precincts. 





(k) Schedule 3 Part D – Further Environmental Assessment Requirements, Condition 3 is amended by the insertion of the bold and underlined words / numbers and deletion of the struckout words/numbers as follows:





3.	Noise Management Assessment





A detailed Noise Management Assessment identifying:


· traffic noise mitigation measures for the road design; 


· areas which require acoustic treatments to dwelling facades to provide satisfactory indoor noise levels; and


· appropriate mitigation measures (the use of mounds and landscape buffers, not acoustic walls) for the design and layout of stages affected by truck noise from the Quarry Haul Road, dry boat storage and marina activities.; and 


· details of mitigation measures (the use of acoustic walls and landscape buffers) to ensure surrounding residential land uses are not affected by noise form the marina / commercial land use.  





(l) Schedule 3 Part D – Further Environmental Assessment Requirements, Condition 13 is amended by the insertion of the bold and underlined words / numbers as follows:





13.	Social Infrastructure 





Social infrastructure shall be provided in accordance with Council’s Section 94 Contributions Plan or where applicable, through any negotiated Voluntary Planning Agreement between the developer and Council in relation to the Site. The details of any playground, local library and multi-purpose community centre shall be provided with each stage of the project. 





(m) Schedule 3 Part D – Further Environmental Assessment Requirements, Condition 17 is amended by the insertion of the bold and underlined words / numbers as follows:





17. 	Public Access





The detailed design and layout of the project must adopt the following principles:





(a) direct, legible and inviting public pedestrian access from adjoining residential development and pedestrian connections which follow existing and proposed well-connected streets;


(b) clear and direct access from the public walkway around the harbour to streets that meet the harbour edge to ensure public access is well defined and integrated; and


(c) clear, through-site pedestrian links with active street frontages, direct and legible access to key points of interest, including Shellharbour village, which are publicly accessible at all times.


(d) consistency with the Shellharbour Shared Use Path Strategy (Shellharbour City Council, 10 August 2010) unless otherwise justified.


(e) continuous and sufficiently wide public access around the entire harbour perimeter connecting to the beach on either side of the harbour entrance. 





(n) Schedule 3 Part D – Further Environmental Assessment Requirements is amended by the insertion of the following new Further Environmental Assessment Requirement 18:





18. 	Surface and Ground Water





The proponent must submit a surface and groundwater report, prepared by a suitability qualified person, which includes: 


(a) an assessment of impacts to surface and groundwater sources including water use, water licensing arrangements, impacts on water users, waterfront land and aquifers, as well as compliance with relevant policies; and


(b) details of any groundwater dewatering which may be required during the construction phase of the precinct, including:


i. information on the sites hydrogeology;


ii. a description of the current groundwater situation, such as groundwater quality and groundwater level;


iii. predicted groundwater take, inclusive of the calculations supporting this estimate; and


iv. a discussion on impacts in line with the Aquifer Interference Policy (2012)





End of modification MP 07_0027 MOD 1
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within the Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct or only for the residential component.
 


Response: The traffic report submitted with the Concept Plan identified that traffic
generation from the site comprised commercial and tourism land uses (84%) and
residential land uses (16%). The traffic report considered performance of intersections in
Shell Cove both with and without development associated with the  Concept Plan.   
 
The Traffic Review submitted with the modification application (at Appendix F)
considered the traffic impacts associated with the proposed changes combined with the
traffic generation associated with the approved uses across the site. It found that the
modified hotel building would not materially change the traffic generation of the hotel
and the additional residential dwellings would only result in a 2% peak increase based on
current RMS traffic generation rates. The Proponent also noted that if the previous
traffic generation rates were applied (i.e. the generation rates used during assessment of
the Concept Plan), the additional residential dwellings would result in a 3.5% increase in
traffic during the peak period. There are no changes to the tourism or commercial
components of the site. The traffic review concluded that taking into consideration
additional residential component proposed in the modification, the road network would
operate satisfactorily and in similar manner to the approved network.  


 
3. The Commission notes that Council raised issues regarding the definition of heights including


discrepancies across the precinct between proposed height controls in metres and number of
storeys. Council suggested that consideration should be given to the concept approval
specifying floor to ceiling heights to address this issue. Please advise whether this issue was
considered by the Department in its assessment.


 
Response: The Department notes that building heights for the site are controlled via both
a maximum building height in metres and storeys. The Department considered the
proposed building heights in metres relative to storeys and was satisfied the overall
building height is reasonable. The Department also notes building height is defined in the
Shell Cove Boat Harbour Precinct Design Report dated July 2018 and as noted in the
Proponent’s addendum RtS, the maximum building height is inclusive of the entire
height of the buildings, including plant and lift overruns, and allows for consideration of
the sloping topography of the site.
 
The Department does not consider it necessary to include minimum or maximum floor
to ceiling height restrictions noting the controls in place for building height (outlined
above). Further, many of the mixed use buildings typically have different floor to ceiling
heights depending on the proposed use. Therefore, it would be difficult to specify floor
to ceiling heights across the site.  


 
The Department considers the ultimate floor to ceiling heights would be best considered
by Council during the assessment of future DAs for individual buildings, when the
detailed design of the building is provided.


 
The Department suggests that if the Commission has concerns about this aspect of the
proposal, an advisory note could be included outlining that the concept plan sets the
maximum building heights permitted across the site but the ultimate height must be







determined by council following consideration of site constraints and proposed uses etc.
 
4. Please clarify why the definition of tourist and visitor accommodation has been included in the


instrument (under ‘Definitions’)? It is noted that the definition is the same as that referenced
in the standard instrument LEP.


 
Response: The Department has included the definition as it formed part of the proposal
and it would make it clear that these uses would be permitted on the site.


 
It should also be noted the concept plan would set the permitted land uses across the
site rather than the LEP. 


 
If you have any questions, please feel free to give me a call.
 
Kind regards,
 
Michelle Niles
Senior Planner
Regional Assessments
320 Pitt Street | GPO Box 39, SYDNEY  NSW  2001
T 02 9274 6272 |E michelle.niles@planning.nsw.gov.au
 


 


From: Andrew McAnespie 
Sent: Tuesday, 19 February 2019 11:22 AM
To: Michelle Niles <Michelle.Niles@planning.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Dan Keary <dan@keylan.com.au>; Brent Devine <brent@keylan.com.au>
Subject: FW: Shell Cove Boat Harbour
 
Hello Michelle
 
I refer to my earlier email attached wherein the Commission has made enquiries regarding
aspects of the proposal.
 
Could the Department please respond to the issues raised.
 
I apologise in advance if you have already done so however I can’t find anything in my email
records.
 
Additionally, would you be able to provide a word version of the modification instrument.
 
Thanks
 
Andrew McAnespie | Senior Planning Officer
 


Independent Planning Commission NSW
Level 3, 201 Elizabeth Street SYDNEY NSW 2000
e: andrew.mcanespie@ipcn.nsw.gov.au | p: +61 2 9383 2109 | f: 9383 2133 |  www.ipcn.nsw.gov.au
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                        FOLLOW US ON:


                      


P Please consider the environment before printing this e-mail.


 
 


From: Andrew McAnespie 
Sent: Friday, 25 January 2019 3:17 PM
To: Michelle Niles <Michelle.Niles@planning.nsw.gov.au>
Cc: Anthony Witherdin <Anthony.Witherdin@planning.nsw.gov.au>; Brent Devine
<brent@keylan.com.au>; Dan Keary <dan@keylan.com.au>
Subject: Shell Cove Boat Harbour
 
Michelle
 
Please find below further information requested by the Commission Panel in respect of the
above project.
 
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
storeys. Council suggested that consideration should be given to the concept approval specifying
floor to ceiling heights to address this issue. Please advise whether this issue was considered by
the Department in its assessment.
4. Please clarify why the definition of tourist and visitor accommodation has been included in the
instrument (under ‘Definitions’)? It is noted that the definition is the same as that referenced in
the standard instrument LEP.
 
Thanks for your assistance.
 
regards
 
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
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